Water District 36A – Annual Meeting

January 16, 2024, 2:00 pm Hagerman American Legion Hall, Hagerman, ID 83332 RECEIVED

JAN 2 5 2024

DEPT OF WATER RESOURCES SOUTHERN REGION

### (1-3) Call to Order, Welcome, Meeting Chairman/Secretary Elections

Matt Doperalski, WD 36A Water Master, opened the meeting at 2:03 pm, welcomed everyone and identified IDWR employees in attendance (Cory King, Rob Whitney). Twenty seven people were in attendance representing 32 of the 72 assessed diversions in the District, plus individual water rights.

Matt Doperalski asked for nominations for a meeting Chair and meeting Secretary. *Skyler Farnsworth nominated and Elizabeth Bennion seconded Frank Erwin as meeting Chair and Linda Lemmon as meeting Secretary.* No other nominations were offered and nominations were closed. *Motion carried by hand vote with none opposed.* 

Handouts available on the entry table for review: Agenda for today's meeting, Minutes from the January 17, 2023 Water District 36A Annual Meeting, the 2023 Treasurer's Report and Proposed 2024 Water District 36A Budget, and the proposed 2024 Water District 36A Resolutions.

## (4) Approval of FY 2023 Annual Meeting Minutes

Frank Erwin asked for a motion to approve the minutes from last year's annual meeting as presented. *A motion was made by Skyler Farmsworth and seconded by Elizabeth Bennion to approve the minutes from the January 17, 2023 Annual Meeting as written and presented. Motion carried by hand vote with none opposed.* 

### (5) Adoption of Proposed 2024 Budget

Frank Erwin asked Matt Doperalski to review the handout titled *Water District 36A Budget Summary* which included both the 2023 Treasurer's Report (adopted and actual budgets) and the 2024 Proposed Budget. Matt explained that there was no change proposed for the assessment rate per 24-hr second foot nor the minimum assessment amount for 2024. Matt explained that District employees (Water Master and Secretary/Treasurer) would be participating in the State's PERSI retirement program starting in 2024. To participate in PERSI, the District must deposit into the state retirement program an additional amount from its budget equal to a statemandated percentage of the annual salaries paid by the District. Rather than increase the overall District budget for 2024 by that percentage, Matt's proposed budget includes voluntary employee salary reductions so that the value of the proposed 2024 salary plus the value of the proposed PERSI contributions (when withdrawn at retirement) would be equivalent to the salary paid in 2023. In other words, no net increase.

Frank asked for a motion to approve the budget. *A motion to adopt the proposed budget as presented was made by Skyler Farnsworth and seconded by Elizabeth Bennion.* There was no further discussion. *Motion carried by hand vote with no opposing votes.* 

## (6) Adoption of Proposed 2024 Resolutions

Matt reviewed the handout titled *Water District 36A - Proposed Resolutions for 2024* which describes the rules under which the District will operate this year. The proposed resolutions had been reviewed and approved previously by the Advisory Board at their annual meeting in December 2023. Matt explained that the changes in the proposed resolutions included updating dates in resolutions 5, 6 & 10 and adding a new resolution #12. The new resolution is necessary to comply with state statute on the alternative way of voting at District meetings should someone request a vote by Credentials. Rather than a simple voice or hand vote, voting by credentials entitles each water user who holds a water right to have one vote for each dollar paid to cover his/her proportional share of the District's annual assessment. Oftentimes, water users along common ditches receive a single bill from the ditch company that combines the ditch company's O&M costs with the District assessment fee. The new resolution would require the ditch company to provide sufficient detail on its annual invoice so that each water user who has a water right along the ditch could provide the Credentials

Committee with appropriate information for voting purposes at the Water District 36A annual meeting. This resolution would not apply to the ditch companies that have shareholders.

Frank asked for a motion to adopt the resolutions. *Skyler Farnsworth moved and Elizabeth Bennion seconded that the 2024 proposed resolutions be adopted as presented.* There was no further discussion. *Motion carried by hand vote with none opposed.* 

## (7) Election of Water District 36A Advisory Board for FY 2024

Frank explained that the current Advisory Board members indicated that they would be willing to serve again this year.

Skyler Farnsworth moved and Elizabeth Bennion seconded that the Advisory Board members who served in 2023 be re-elected to serve in 2024. No other nominations were offered from the floor and the nominations were closed. Motion carried by hand vote with none opposed.

2024 Advisory Board Members are:	Frank Erwin, Hagerman Water Users Association Skyler Farnsworth, Idaho Fish & Game Philip Henderson, Riverence Farms
	Bud Huntley, Big Bend Irrigation & Mining Co.
	Gary Lemmon, Big Springs Water Users Assoc.
	John Mavencamp, Brailsford Ditch
	Billy McCarthy, Curren Ditch, Hunt Ditch, Bar-S Ditch
	Howard Morris, Hoagland Tunnel
	Dan Yore, Buckeye Ditch

# (8) Water Master's Report & Goals for 2024

Matt presented a graph depicting historical flows along Billingsley Creek over the past 19 years that had been measured at the Hwy 30 bridge gauge. Although the graph indicated a slight upward trend in flows passing that particular gauge, he showed additional graphs depicting declining flows from springs in the District.

Matt shared that his focus this past year had been to ensure completion of several projects started in 2023, including replacing measuring devices on the Anderson Pond Ditch and at Three Springs. Installation of a new controllable and lockable structure along the Big Bend Ditch was still in discussion. He also ordered minor adjustments along the Idaho Power Ditch and the Barlogi Ditch. Unlike 2022, no major flow augmentations along Billingsley Creek were required this year.

Going forward, Matt said he would be capturing pipeline information in the District to update a map Frank Erwin had created when he was Water Master.

(9) District Q&A None.

**Meeting adjourned at 2:36 pm.** Motion to adjourn was made by Skyler Farnsworth and seconded by Tom Seiberling. There were no opposing votes.

Minutes recorded by

Linda Lemmon, Meeting Secretary

Minutes certified for submission to IDWR by

Frank Erwin, Meeting Chairman

Attachments: 2024 Adopted Budget, 2024 Adopted Resolutions